
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

August 1, 2017  9:00 am 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jan J. Moore 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Phil Boyum 
 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations  
A) Update on the Storm Water Master Plan 
B) Presentation of Employee of the Quarter Award 
 

4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 
 

5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
A) Approval of Minutes 

a) 07-18-2017 Council Minutes 
 

B) Consideration of a motion to award the purchase of a Ford F150 truck to Allan Vigil 
Ford, Inc. per the State of Georgia Purchasing Contract # SWC 99999-SPD-
ES40199373-002 in the amount of $23,840.00 for the Sanitation Division of Public 
Works.  This purchase was approved by city council in the FY2018 budget in the 
amount of $25,000.00 and will be funded by Solid Waste Collection revenues. 
 

C) Consideration of a motion to award the purchase of a Ford F 350 truck with a service 
body to Wade Ford in the amount of $35,119.00.  This vehicle is budgeted in the 
amount of $40,000.00 in FY 2018 under CIP # STS-74. The purchase of this vehicle 
will be made using funds from the GMA Lease Pool. 
 

D) Consideration of a motion to award the purchase of a Ford F 350 truck with a service 
body to Wade Ford in the amount of $47,939.00. This vehicle is budgeted in the 
amount of $46,500.00 in FY 2018 under CIP # NGD-52. The purchase of this vehicle 
will be made using Natural Gas revenue funds. 

 
6. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve Alcohol License Application: 

A)  Statesboro Woodfire LLC DBA Picci Pizza 
             Jeffry T. Humes 
             807 South Main Street 
              Statesboro Ga 30458 
 

7. Motion to award a contract for the Highway 301 at Ogeechee River Gas Main 
Replacement Project to Electricom LLC in the amount of $861,030.77. This project was 
budgeted in the amount of $1,200,000.00 ($1,000,000.00 from 2017 SPLOST and 
$200,000.00 from Natural Gas revenues).  

 



 
 

8. Consideration of a Motion to Award a Contract to Hussey, Gay and Bell, Inc., in the 
amount of $27,340 to provide engineering design services associated with CIP 
Project WWD-14, the Rehabilitation of Sanitary Sewer and Storm Sewer Mains.  
Contract will be funded from 2013 SPLOST proceeds and Stormwater Utility Operating 
fund. 
 

9. Consideration of a Motion to approve the contract amendment No. 1 to the 
Transformhealthrx Health and Wellness Center Services agreement to add additional 
staffing hours  

   
10. Other Business from City Council 

 
11. City Managers Comments 

 
12. Public Comments (General) 

 
13. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss  “Real Estate”  in 

accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 
  

14. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 
 

 
Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 

Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Sam Jones, District 2 
Jeff Yawn, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 
  
 
 
  
 
 
    
To:   Randy Wetmore, City Manager 
 
From:  Jason Boyles, Director of Public Works and Engineering 
 
Date:  July 21, 2017 
 
RE:  Stormwater Master Planning Project Update 
 
Policy Issue:  Stormwater Utility 
 
Recommendation:  
Presentation by Marcos Trejo, Stormwater Manager, on the current status of the 
stormwater master planning project and timeline for completion of Task Order #1 
(phase 1). 
 
Background:  
In October 2016 city council approved a professional services agreement with 
Ecological Planning Group (EPG) to perform stormwater master planning services for 
the City of Statesboro.  In addition, council also approved the first task order which 
included infrastructure assessment and GIS inventory, a drainage system maintenance 
plan and standard operating procedures, capital improvement program update and 
cost estimates, and drainage basin delineation.  EPG has completed the majority of 
work under this 12 month task order and estimates final completion of this phase of 
work to occur in September 2017.  Staff anticipates presenting Task Order #2 for 
consideration of approval in October 2017.  Work under this phase will include study 
and engineering modeling/calculations of delineated drainage basins. 
 
Budget Impact:  Task Order 1 Contract Not To Exceed $72,040.00 
 
Council Person and District:  citywide 
 
Attachments:  None 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Council Minutes 

July 18, 2017 

 
A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on July 18th, 2017 at 5:30 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jan J. Moore, Council Members: Phil 
Boyum, Sam Lee Jones and Jeff Yawn  Also present were City Manager Randy Wetmore, 
Deputy City Manager Robert Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling and City Attorney Cain Smith.   
Councilman John Riggs and Travis Chance were absent.    
The Meeting was called to Order by Mayor Jan J. Moore 
 
The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was led by DSDA Director Allen Muldrew. 
 
Recognitions/Public Presentations 

A) Presentation by Police Chief Mike Broadhead regarding the Police 
Department year-end report. 

Police Chief Mike Broadhead updated Council on the 2016 Statesboro Police Department annual 
report. 
  
Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 06-20-2017 Council Minutes 
b) 06-20-2017 Executive Session Minutes 

 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve the consent 
agenda in its entirety. Councilman Boyum, Jones and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to award a twelve (12) month extension for general liability and 
workers compensation insurance brokerage services to Glenn Davis and Associates 
Insurance Agency. If approved, this term would begin August 1, 2017. 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to award a twelve (12) month 
extension for general liability and workers compensation insurance brokerage services to Glenn 
Davis and Associates Insurance Agency. If approved, this term would begin August 1, 2017. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 3-0 
vote. 
 
 
 



 
 

Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Authorize the Mayor to execute a 
Contract for Services with the Statesboro Arts Council, Inc. to market downtown 
Statesboro by operating and managing the Averitt Center for the Arts, using proceeds 
from the Hotel/Motel Tax 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Authorize the Mayor to execute a 
Contract for Services with the Downtown Statesboro Development Authority/Main Street 
to market downtown Statesboro, using proceeds from the Hotel/Motel Tax. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Authorize the Mayor to execute a 
Contract for Services with the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. to market 
Statesboro and Bulloch County, using proceeds from the Hotel/Motel Tax. 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to open the public hearing for 
the contracts for the Arts Council, SCVB and DSDA. Councilman Boyum, Jones and Yawn 
voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 
No one spoke against the request.  
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to close the public hearing 
for the contracts for the Arts Council, SCVB and DSDA. Councilman Boyum, Jones and Yawn 
voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to authorize the Mayor to 
execute a Contract for Services with the Statesboro Arts Council, Inc. to market downtown 
Statesboro by operating and managing the Averitt Center for the Arts, using proceeds from the 
Hotel/Motel Tax. Councilman Boyum, Jones and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to authorize the Mayor to 
execute a Contract for Services with the Downtown Statesboro Development Authority/Main 
Street to market downtown Statesboro, using proceeds from the Hotel/Motel Tax. Councilman 
Boyum, Jones and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to authorize the Mayor to 
execute a Contract for Services with the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. to 
market Statesboro and Bulloch County, using proceeds from the Hotel/Motel Tax. Councilman 
Boyum, Jones and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve Alcohol License Application: 

A)  CAC Boro 3 LLC DBA Del Sur Tacos and Cantina 
            Al Chapman 
             514 South Main Street 
                  Statesboro Ga 30458 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 3-0 
vote. 
 



 
 

Al Chapman spoke in favor of the request. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 3-0 
vote. 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to approve the alcohol 
application for CAC Boro 3 LLC DBA Del Sur Tacos and Cantina. Councilman Boyum, Jones 
and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2017-26: A Resolution stating the City of 
Statesboro endorses the submission of the DD RLF application by the Downtown 
Development Authority of Statesboro 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to approve Resolution 
2017-26: A Resolution stating the City of Statesboro endorses the submission of the DD RLF 
application by the Downtown Development Authority of Statesboro. Councilman Boyum, Jones 
and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2017-27: A Resolution approving South 
Shore Construction’s proposal to utilize City property on Packinghouse Road (Parcel 
S49000016000) as a temporary material lay-down area. 
 
Paul Swigel representing the South Shore Construction Company spoke in favor of the request. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to Approve Resolution 2017-
27: A Resolution approving South Shore Construction’s proposal to utilize City property on 
Packinghouse Road (Parcel S49000016000) as a temporary material lay-down area. Councilman 
Boyum, Jones and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2017-28: A Resolution amending the job 
position classification and compensation plan for Administrative Clerk (Part-Time) to 
Community Information Specialist.  
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve Resolution 
2017-28: A Resolution amending the job position classification and compensation plan for 
Administrative Clerk (Part-Time) to Community Information Specialist. Councilman Boyum, 
Jones and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 
  
Consideration of a motion to award the purchase of a Ford Fusion Hybrid to Allan Vigil 
Ford, Inc. per State of Georgia Purchasing Contract # SWC 99999-SPD-ES40199373-002 
in the amount of $25,112.00 for the Fleet Motor pool.  This purchase was approved by city 
council in the FY2018 budget in the amount of $30,000.00 using the GMA lease pool. 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to award the purchase of a 
Ford Fusion Hybrid to Allan Vigil Ford, Inc. per State of Georgia Purchasing Contract # SWC 
99999-SPD-ES40199373-002 in the amount of $25,112.00 for the Fleet Motor pool.  This 
purchase was approved by city council in the FY2018 budget in the amount of $30,000.00 using 



 
 

the GMA lease pool. Councilman Boyum, Jones and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a motion to award the purchase of a Ford F150 to Allan Vigil Ford, Inc. 
per State of Georgia Purchasing Contract # SWC 99999-SPD-ES40199373-002 in the 
amount of $28,808.00 for the Street Division.  This purchase was approved by city council 
in the FY2018 budget in the amount of $35,000.00 using the GMA lease pool. 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to award the purchase of a 
Ford F150 to Allan Vigil Ford, Inc. per State of Georgia Purchasing Contract # SWC 99999-
SPD-ES40199373-002 in the amount of $28,808.00 for the Street Division.  This purchase was 
approved by city council in the FY2018 budget in the amount of $35,000.00 using the GMA 
lease pool. Councilman Boyum, Jones and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to award a contract to retro-fit an existing refuse truck with a 
new roll-off hoist system to Southeastern Integrated Solutions in the amount of $53,968.00.  
This item was budgeted in the amount of $90,000.00 for FY2018 under CIP # SWC-21 and 
will be paid by Solid Waste Collection Fund revenues. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to award a contract to retro-
fit an existing refuse truck with a new roll-off hoist system to Southeastern Integrated Solutions 
in the amount of $53,968.00.  This item was budgeted in the amount of $90,000.00 for FY2018 
under CIP # SWC-21 and will be paid by Solid Waste Collection Fund revenues. Councilman 
Boyum, Jones and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
Other Business from City Council 
 
Mayor Moore updated everyone on the renovations at City Hall. 
 
City Managers Comments 
 
Police Chief Mike Broadhead updated Council on the Narcan Nasal spray for opioid overdose. 
 
Public Comments (General) 
 
Attorney Robert Busbee shared his opinions on the cost of requested records thru discovery 
when working on active criminal cases.  
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to adjourn the meeting. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones and Yawn voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 3-0 
vote. 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:35 pm. 
 
 



 
 CITY OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

J. Alvin Leaphart, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Sam Jones, District 2 
Jeff Yawn, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager 
     Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
 
From: Darren Prather, Central Services Director 
 
Date: 7-24-2017 
 
RE: Policy Issue: State Purchasing Contract Award Recommendation for (1) Ford  
                              for Sanitation 
 
Recommendation:  
 
We recommend the purchase of a Ford F-150 pickup for the Sanitation Division 
of Public Works in the amount of $23,840.00 from Allan Vigil Ford per the Georgia 
State Purchasing Contract # SWC 99999-SPD-ES40199373-002.  
 
Background:  
 
This truck will be utilized in the Sanitation Division of Public Works. This purchase 
was funded in the amount of $25,000.00 in the current 2018 fiscal year under CIP 
# SWC-10. The remainder of the amount after the vehicle is purchased will be 
used for adding necessary safety and work equipment. This vehicle will be 
funded by Solid Waste Collection Fund revenues. 
 
 
 
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
 
 
Attachments:  
 



 

 

CITY OF STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phillip A. Boyum 
Sam Lee Jones 
Jeff B. Yawn 
John C. Riggs 
Travis L. Chance 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence  
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

  
To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager 
     Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
 
From: Darren Prather, Central Services Director 
 
Date: 7-24-2017 
 
RE: Policy Issue: Bid Award—Truck with Service Body/Streets Division 
  
Recommendation:  
 
We recommend the City of Statesboro award the purchase of a Ford F-350 truck 
with service body to Wade Ford as they submitted the lowest responsive bid in 
the amount of $35,119.00. Although J.C. Lewis was offered the opportunity to 
match the lowest out of county bid per our 3 percent in county advantage 
ordinance, they elected not to do so. 
Background:  
 
This truck with a service body will be utilized in the Streets Division of Public Works. 
This truck, if approved, is funded in the amount of $40,000.00 in FY 2018 and is 
listed under CIP# STS-74. This truck will be paid using funds from the GMA Lease 
Pool. Bid opportunities were sent to eight dealerships and the results were as 
follows: 
 

Dealer    Amount 
 

1. J.C. Lewis Ford    $35,893.32 
2. Roberts Truck Center  $36,139.00 
3. Wade Ford    $35,119.00 

 
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
 
Attachments: None 



 

 

CITY OF STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phillip A. Boyum 
Sam Lee Jones 
Jeff B. Yawn 
John C. Riggs 
Travis L. Chance 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence  
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

  
To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager 
     Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
 
From: Darren Prather, Central Services Director 
 
Date: 7-24-2017 
 
RE: Policy Issue: Bid Award—Duel Fuel CNG Truck with Service Body/ Nat. Gas 
  
Recommendation:  
 
We recommend the City of Statesboro award the purchase of a Ford F-350 truck 
with service body to Wade Ford in the amount of $47,939.00. 
  
Background:  
 
This truck with a service body will be utilized by the Natural Gas Department. This 
truck, if approved, is funded in the amount of $46,500.00 in FY 2018 and is listed 
under CIP# NGD52. This truck will be paid using funds from the Natural Gas 
revenue fund. Bid opportunities were sent to eight dealerships and the results 
were as follows: 
 

Dealer    Amount 
 

1. J.C. Lewis Ford    $35,541.64 ( See note below) 
2. Wade Ford    $47,939.00 

 
Note: J.C. Lewis submitted the above bid, but sent a retraction letter for their bid 

Stating their supplier had made a mistake and not included the CNG     
component in their engine for this bid. 

 
Council Person and District: All 
 
 
Attachments: None 



























 

 

CITY OF STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phillip A. Boyum 
Sam Lee Jones 
Jeff B. Yawn 
John C. Riggs 
Travis L. Chance 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence  
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

  
To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager 
     Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
 
From: Darren Prather, Central Services Director 
 
Date: 7-25-2017 
 
RE: Policy Issue: Bid Award: Gas Main Replacement/Nat. Gas 
 
Recommendation:  
We recommend the contract for a natural gas main replacement at Highway 
301at the Ogeechee River be awarded to Electricom LLC in the amount of 
$861,030.77. Electricom, LLC has met all bid specifications and requirements for 
this project. 
 
Background: 
This gas main replacement is located at Highway 301 and the Ogeechee River. 
This main replacement is due to safety concerns brought about by the age of 
the existing gas main and a large exposed section near the river crossing. We 
advertised as required by the public works laws and conducted a mandatory 
pre-bid with eight contractors in attendance. Of these eight, six submitted 
sealed bids and the results are as follows: 
 

Contractor    Bid Amount 
1. Electricom, LLC   $861,030.77 
2. RAW Construction   $889,025.00 
3. Southeast Connections, LLC $898,050.00 
4. Pride Utility Connections, LLC $990,250.00 
5. Sunland Construction, Inc. $1,338,901.31 
6. Troy Construction, LLC  $1,945,965.00 

 
Council Person and District: All 
 
Attachments:  
 

































 
CITY OF STATESBORO 

 
 
To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager  
 
From: Jeffery Grant, Director of Human Resources  
 
Date: July 25, 2017 
 

RE: Request for additional hours at the Health and Wellness Center 

Policy Issue: Increasing appointment capacity at the Health & Wellness 
Center 
 
Recommendation:  To approve the request for additional staffing hours at 
the City of Statesboro Health & Wellness Center.  
 
Background: In 2012, the City of Statesboro established a first class primary 
care facility for employees and their dependents. The facility is staffed 
with a medical provider and medical assistant dedicated to delivering 
the highest quality of care, treating illnesses and promoting wellness 
amongst employees and dependents. Since that time the City of 
Statesboro has seen the appointment utilization percentage exceed 
maximum capacity each year. In other words, employees and 
dependents are consistently using the Health and Wellness Center to its 
full capacity and more. For instance in FY 2017, the City of Statesboro 
Health & Wellness Center had a provider and nurse visit utilization 
percentage of 109%.  
Currently the Health and Wellness Center has a staffing matrix that consists 
of 8 hours of provider time and 16 hours of medical assistant time. This 
amendment to our existing contract would increase provider time from 8 
hours to12 total hours.   

 
Budget Impact:  The budget impact will be an additional $2166 per month 
to our existing contract fee. The amount requested has already been 
approved through the FY 2018 budget process.  
 
Attachments:  
Amendment to Transformhealthrx Agreemen   



 

1 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1  

TO  

HEALTH AND WELLNESS CENTER SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 (“Amendment”) is made and entered into by and between 

City of Statesboro (“Client”) and TransformHealthRx, LLC, a Georgia limited liability company 

(“THRX”) and is effective as of July 3, 2017 (the “Amendment Effective Date”).  Client and 

THRX are referred to in this Amendment individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

All capitalized terms used in this Amendment and not otherwise defined herein have the meanings 

set forth in the Agreement, as defined below. 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, Client and THRX entered into that certain Health and Wellness Center 

Services Agreement, dated as of January 10, 2012, (the “Agreement”); 

 

WHEREAS, Client and THRX desire to amend the Monthly Staffing Fees, update the 

staffing matrix, and make other changes for their mutual benefit. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set 

forth herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

1. The Agreement is amended pursuant to Section 5.03 thereof to add the following 

new sentence to the end of Article III, Section 3.04, titled “Monthly Staffing Fees”: “Commencing 

July 3, 2017, no later than the 10th day of each calendar month for which THRX invoice is received, 

Client agrees to pay THRX the amount of $8,440.67.” 

 

2. Section 3.04 of the Agreement is further amended to add the following new Staffing 

Matrix effective as of this Amendment Effective Date: 

 

Staffing Matrix 

 

Position Hours per 

week 

Physician, Nurse Practitioner or Physician’s Assistant 

(“Physician Extender”) 

12 

Nurse or Medical Assistant 16 

 

3. The Agreement is further amended to delete Exhibit B and in lieu thereof insert 

the Exhibit B attached hereto, and incorporated herein, by this reference. 

 

 

 

 



2 

4. Except as herein amended, the Agreement, and all of the terms and conditions

contained therein, are hereby ratified and reaffirmed by the Parties.  

5. This Amendment represents the complete agreement between the Parties regarding

the subject matter hereof, and no other changes or modifications of the Agreement are intended 

nor shall any such other changes or modifications exist.  In the event of a conflict between the 

terms of the Agreement and this Amendment, the terms of this Amendment shall control to the 

extent applicable. 

6. Except as specifically stated herein, each capitalized term used in this Amendment

will have the same meaning assigned to it in the Agreement. 

7. This Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts and/or by facsimile,

each of which will be deemed an original and all of which together will constitute one instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the duly authorized officers of each of the Parties have 

executed this Amendment as of the Effective Date, intending to be legally bound hereby. 

City of Statesboro TransformHealthRx, LLC 

By: By: 

Name: Name: 

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 

Shannon Farrington

Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer



 

3 
 

EXHIBIT B 

 

The Physician or Physician Extender shall be available to provide Medical Services pursuant to 

this Agreement no less than twelve (12) hours per calendar week. 

 

The Nurse shall be available to provide Medical Services pursuant to this Agreement no less than 

sixteen (16) hours per calendar week. 

 

The Health and Wellness Center will observe the following holidays: 

 

New Year’s Day 

Memorial Day 

Independence Day 

Labor Day 

Thanksgiving Day 

Christmas Eve Day 

Christmas Day 

 

If the Health and Wellness Center is closed for a scheduled holiday, and that holiday is a day the 

Health and Wellness Center would otherwise provide services to the Client, THRX shall be 

deemed to have provided Medical Services, per the staffing matrix, listed in Section 3.04 of the 

Agreement. 

 

Everyone waiting for an appointment will be seen and given an adequate time. This will 

periodically result in the need for the clinic hours to be extended beyond the time allotted in the 

staffing matrix contained in Section 3.04.  In the event that this situation occurs, THRX will 

provide appropriate Medical Services and bill the Client for the cost of additional time of the 

medical staff.  

 

 


	08-01-2017 Council Agenda
	08-2017 Stormwater Update August 1 2017 memo
	07-18-2017 Council minutes
	08-2017 Memo Sanitation Truck Rec F-150--23
	08-2017 memo 2 streets truck 35
	08-2017 memo 2 truck nat gas -47
	08-2017 Alcohol application
	08-2017 Natural gas 301 south
	08-2017 HGB I&I Agenda Memo
	08-2017 HGB I & I Contract 2017
	08-2017-Transform Health Contract Amendment Memo
	08-2017- Transform Health AMD 01-City of Statesboro  2017-07-03

